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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

WACO DIVISION 
 
 

 
THINKLOGIX, LLC, 
                                Plaintiff,  
 
                          v.  
 
VTECH HOLDINGS LTD. and  
VTECH COMMUNICATIONS, INC., 
                                           Defendants. 
 

          Case No. 6:24-cv-00206 
 
           Jury Trial Demanded 

   
 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

Plaintiff ThinkLogix LLC, (“ThinkLogix”) files this Complaint against VTech 

Holdings Ltd. and VTech Communications, Inc., (unless otherwise stated, 

hereinafter collectively referred to as “VTech” or “Defendants”) for infringement of 

United States Patent Nos. 6,920,373; 8,599,835; 9,231,994; 9,906,573; 7,184,524; and 

7,136,392; (the “Patents-in-Suit”), and alleges as follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws 

of the United States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq. 
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THE PARTIES 

2. ThinkLogix LLC is a Texas limited liability company with its principal 

place of business at 17350 State Highway 249 STE 220, Houston, Texas 77064-1132, 

USA. 

3. On information and belief, defendant VTech Holdings Ltd. is a foreign 

corporation of Hong Kong, having a principal place of business at 23rd Floor, Tai 

Ping Industrial Centre, Block 1, 57 Ting Kok Road, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong 

Kong. 

4. On information and belief, defendant VTech Communications, Inc., is a 

corporation organized under the laws of Oregon, having a principal place of 

business 9020 South West Washington Square, Road, Suite 555, Portland, Oregon 

97223. 

5. On information and belief, defendant VTech Communications, Inc., 

may be served with process via its registered agent, Unisearch Inc., located at 823 

Congress Avenue, Suite P-4, Austin, Texas 78701. 

6. On information and belief, VTech Communications, Inc has been 

authorized to do business in the State of Texas and the Western District of Texas 

since at least April 6, 2006, under Texas SoS File Number 0800638388. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7. On information and belief, VTech provides cloud-based services 

related to its security camera monitoring platforms to its customers, including but 

not limited to those customers in this Judicial District.  
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8. On information and belief, VTech also provides mobile and online call 

conferencing services associated with its call conferencing products to its customers, 

including but not limited to those customers in this Judicial District. 

9. The Patents-in-Suit cover VTech’s products, services, and methods 

related to conference and camera/video systems, which are designed, developed, 

manufactured, distributed, sold, offered for sale, and used by VTech and/or their 

customers, consumers, and clients, including but not limited to those customers, 

consumers, and clients residing in the State of Texas and this Judicial District. 

10. On information and belief, VTech, on its own and/or via its divisions, 

subsidiaries, partners, and affiliates maintain a corporate and commercial presence 

in the United States, including in the State of Texas and this judicial district, via at 

least 1) VTech’s physical locations, established throughout Texas, including this 

District; 2) VTech’s online presence that provides to consumers access to VTech’s 

Products and Services, including those identified as infringing herein; and 3) 

consumers and clients of VTech who utilize VTech services, at physical and online 

sites.  

11. VTech, on its own and/or via alter egos, agents, divisions, subsidiaries, 

partners, and affiliates maintains a regular and established place of business in this 

District located at 1143 AT&T Center Parkway, San Antonio, Texas 78219, do 

business, including committing infringing acts, in the U.S., the State of Texas, and in 

this Judicial District.  
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12. On information and belief, VTech has made, used, offered to sell 

and/or sold products and services, including the following specifically accused 

products and services: (1) MyVTech Baby Pro app;1 (2) Baby Monitor;2 (3) VTech 

Snom’s Desk Telephone D717, D725 and similar products;3 (4) VTech’s ‘2-Line Color 

SIP Cordless Accessory Handset and similar products;4 (5)VTech’s KidiBuzz G2 

 
1 See e.g., https://apps.apple.com/us/app/myvtech-baby-pro/id1542759321 and 
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.cams.vtech.mvb.pro. 
2 See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-full-hd-
1080p. 
3 See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/en/pd/ip-phones/desk-phones/d7xx-series-next-
gen/d717 and https://www.snomamericas.com/en/pd/d725. 
4 See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-SIP-
Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
5 See e.g., https://www.vtechkids.com/kidibuzzsafety. 
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Smart Device;5 (6) current or legacy products or services, which use, or have used, 

one or more of the foregoing products and services as a component product or 

component service; (7) combinations of products and/or services comprising, in 

whole or in part, two or more of the foregoing products and services; (8) hardware 

and software components comprising the VTech Products and Services and/or that 

enable the VTech Products and Services to operate, including but not limited to 

cordless phones, desk phones, webcams, baby-monitors, smart devices, servers, 

server hardware, server software, website software, webservers, client-side software, 

mobile software, mobile app software, and browser executable software; and (9) all 

other current or legacy products and services imported, made, used, sold, or offered 

for sale by VTech that operate, or have operated in a substantially similar manner as 

the above-listed products and services. (As used herein, one or more of the forgoing 

products and services are individually and collectively referred to as the accused 

“VTech Products and Services”). On information and belief, one or more of the 

VTech Products and Services infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least one claim of each of the patents-in-suit. 

13. This Court has personal jurisdiction over VTech, at least, because it 

committed and continues to commit acts of infringement in this judicial district in 

violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. In particular, on information and belief, VTech has 

made, used, offered to sell access to, and/or sold access to the accused VTech 

Products and Services in the Western District of Texas, and has made, used, offered 

to sell access to, and/or sold access to the VTech System in the Western District of 

Texas.  
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14. On information and belief, VTech is subject to the Court’s jurisdiction 

because it regularly conducts and solicits business, or otherwise engages in other 

persistent courses of conduct in this judicial district, and/or derives substantial 

revenue from the use, sale, and distribution of goods and services, including but not 

limited to the accused VTech Products and Services provide to individuals and 

businesses in the Western District of Texas. 

15. On information and belief, VTech directly infringes the patents-in-suit 

in Texas, including specifically in the Western District of Texas, at least, by making, 

using, offering to sell access to, and/or selling access to the accused VTech Products 

and Services in the Western District of Texas, and its making, use, offering to sell 

access to, and/or selling access to the VTech System in the Western District of Texas. 

16. On information and belief, one or more of the accused VTech Products 

and Services and/or the VTech System are made, used, sold and/or offered for sale 

by VTech, its subsidiaries and/or agents, in the Western District of Texas.  

17. On information and belief, VTech’s customers located in the Western 

District of Texas have obtained access to and used the accused VTech Products and 

Services and/or the VTech System while located in the Western District of Texas.  

18. The Court has personal jurisdiction over VTech, at least, because it has 

continuous business contacts in the State of Texas and in the Western District of 

Texas and VTech has engaged in business activities including transacting business in 

the Western District of Texas and purposefully directing its business activities, 

including the sale or offer for sale of the VTech Products and Services to the Western 

District of Texas to induce, aid, abet, and/or contribute to the infringement of third 
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parties in the Western District of Texas, including without limitation the direct 

infringement of VTech’s customers located in the Western District of Texas through 

the use of VTech Products and Services and the VTech System, while they are 

located within the Western District of Texas. 

19. This Court has personal jurisdiction over VTech because, inter alia, 

VTech, on information and belief: (1) has committed acts of patent infringement in 

this Western District of Texas; (2) maintains a regular and established place of 

business in the Western District of Texas; (3) has substantial, continuous, and 

systematic contacts with this State and the Western District of Texas; (4) owns, 

manages, and operates facilities in this State and the Western District of Texas; (5) 

enjoys substantial income from its operations and sales in this State and the Western 

District of Texas; (6) employs Texas residents in this State and the Western District of 

Texas, and (7) solicits business using the VTech Products and Services and VTech 

System in this State and the Western District of Texas. 

20. On information and belief, VTech supports and markets the VTech 

Products and Services and VTech System in the State of Texas and this Judicial 

District, to customers and potential customers, who reside in the State of Texas and 

in this judicial district through various means, including through the efforts of its 

agents and/or employees who reside in the Western District of Texas.  
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21. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b), (c), (d) and/or 

1400(b) and the Federal Circuit’s decision in In re Monolithic Power Sys., 50 F.4th 157 

(Fed. Cir. 2022), at least because VTech has multiple employees based out of this 

district as listed on LinkedIn, has transacted business in this district, and has directly 
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committed acts of patent infringement in this district.  Venue is also proper as to 

Defendant VTech Holdings Ltd, which is a foreign corporation, under 28 U.S.C. § 

1391(c)(3) that provides “a defendant not resident in the United States may be sued 

in any judicial district, and the joinder of such a defendant shall be disregarded in 

determining where the action may be brought with respect to other defendants.” 

VTech’s Prior Knowledge of the Patents-in-Suit   

22. On or about October 31, 2023, counsel for ThinkLogix sent a letter (the 

“October 2023 Letter”) via FedEx to Dr. Allan Wong Chi Yun, in his role as 

Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer of VTech, as well as to Mr. Kenton 

Erwin in his role as General Counsel of VTech.  The October 2023 Letter was sent to 

VTech, along with a draft of the instant Complaint, for the express purpose of 

acquainting VTech with ThinkLogix’s patent portfolio of at least the ’373; ’835; ’994; 

and ’573 Patents, prior to any enforcement action relating to its past and future use, 

related to VTech’s System, and invited VTech to participate in discussions regarding 

a license to allow its continued use of ThinkLogix’s patented technologies.   

23. As of the date of the filing of the instant Complaint, VTech has not 

responded to the October 2023 Letter.  

24. On information and belief, at all times from October 2023 to the filing 

of the instant Complaint, Mr. Erwin has held the office of General Counsel of VTech.  

United States Patent No. 6,920,373 

25. On July 19, 2005, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States 

Patent No. 6,920,373 (“the ’373 patent”) entitled “Synchronization and task control of 

real-time internet based super-media” to inventor Ning Xi, and Imad Elhajj. 
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26. The ’373 patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

27. ThinkLogix owns all rights, title, and interest in the ’373 patent. 

28. ThinkLogix has not granted VTech an approval, an authorization, or a 

license to the rights under the ’373 patent. 

29. The ’373 patent relates to, among other things, the control of devices, 

and more particularly to super-media enhanced control of devices over the Internet. 

30. The claimed inventions(s) of the ’373 patent sought to solve problems 

with, and improve upon, attempts to control devices over the Internet with force 

feedback. 

31. The inventions claimed in the ’373 patent overcome the limitations in 

the prior art to effectively control a device remotely in a closed-loop control system. 

The ’373 patent discloses a closed-loop control system that includes a device that is 

connected to the distributed communications system and that generates super-media 

feedback signals. A computer is connected to the distributed communications 

system and includes a controller that provides super-media feedback. The computer 

generates and transmits command signals using the controller to the device and 

outputs the super-media feedback signals to the controller. The closed-loop control 

system is event-based to ensure stability and synchronization of the closed-loop 

system. 

United States Patent No. 8,599,835 

32. On December 3, 2013, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States 

Patent No. 8,599,835 (“the ’835 patent”) entitled “Streaming media” to inventors 

Martti Mela, and Pekka Pessi. 
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33. The ’835 patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

34. ThinkLogix owns all rights, title, and interest in the ’835 patent. 

35. ThinkLogix has not granted VTech an approval, an authorization, or a 

license to the rights under the ’835 patent. 

36. The ’835 patent relates to, among other things, a novel method of 

multimedia streaming based on the SIP protocol. 

37. The claimed invention(s) of the ’835 patent sought to solve problems 

with, and improve upon, existing streaming media solutions. For example, the ’835 

patent states: 

According to a first aspect of the present invention there is provided a method 
for providing an SIP session between a first and a second entity, said method 
comprising the steps of establishing a SIP session between the first and second 
entity; transmitting at least one media stream between the first entity and the 
second entity and controlling at least one of transmission, storage and play 
back of the at least one media stream at said first and/or second entity. 
 
According to a second aspect of the present invention there is provided a 
method of providing an SIP session between a first and a second entity, and a 
RTSP session between said second entity and a third entity, said method 
comprising the steps of establishing a SIP session between the first and second 
entity; establishing an RTSP session between said second entity and said third 
mapping between SIP and RSTP information to allow data to pass from one of 
said first and third entities to the other of said first and third entities. 
 
According to a third aspect of the present invention, there is provided a method 
of providing a SIP session between a first entity and a second entity, said 
method comprising the steps of establishing a SIP session between the first and 
second entities; providing at least one media stream to one of said first and 
second entities from the other of said entities; and updating said at least one 
media stream during said session. 
 
According to a fourth aspect of the present invention, there is provided a 
communications system comprising a first and second entity, said first and 
second entity being operable to establish a SIP session between the first and 
second entity, one of said entities being arranged to transmit at least one media 
streams to the other entity, said system being such that at least one of 
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transmission, storage and play back of the media streams is controlled at least 
one of said entities. 
 
According to a fifth aspect of the present invention, there is provided a 
communications system comprising a first and second entity, said first and 
second entity being operable to establish a SIP session between the first and 
second entity, said first entity being arrange to retrieve a description of a 
session, said first and second entities being arranged to establish a session 
therebetween, one of the entities being arranged to send at least one media 
stream to the other entity and said other entity being arranged to control the 
play back of the media streams. 
 
According to a sixth aspect of the present invention, there is provided a 
communications system comprising a first and a second entity, said first and 
second entity being operable to establish a SIP session between the first and 
second entity, one of said entities being arranged to transmit at least one media 
stream to the other entity, wherein said at least one of said media streams can 
be sent at one of a plurality of different playback rates. 
 
According to a seventh aspect of the present invention, there is provide a 
communications system comprising a first, second and third entity wherein the 
first and second entities are arranged to establish a SIP session therebetween, 
and the second and third entities are arrange to establish a RTSP session 
therebetween, said second entity being arranged to map between SIP and RSTP 
information to allow data to pass from one of said first and third entities to the 
other of said first and third entities. 
 
According to an eighth aspect of the present invention, there is provided a 
communications system comprising a first and a second entity, said first and 
second entity being operable to establish a SIP session between the first and 
second entity, one of said entities being arranged to transmit at least one media 
stream to the other entity, wherein said at least one media stream us updatable 
during said session. 
 
According to a ninth aspect of the present invention, there is provided a 
gateway for use in a communications system, wherein said gateway is arranged 
to establish a SIP session with one entity and a RTSP session with a further 
entity, said gateway being arranged to map between SIP and RSTP information 
to allow data to pass from one of said first and third entities to the other of said 
first and third entities. 

 
See e.g., ’835 Specification col. 2, l. 5 – col. 3, ll. 1- 10. 
 

38. The inventions claimed in the ’835 patent overcome the limitations of 

prior art to enhance the user experience in streaming media, including but not 
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limited to: (1) the ability to receive a request to establish a media session for 

streaming media from a media source to a media sink, which allows for the initiation 

of a media streaming session; (2) the capacity to send a response to the request that 

includes a session description and an indication of a maximum bit rate for the media 

session, which provides a mechanism for controlling the quality and bandwidth 

usage of the media stream; (3) the feature of receiving a media stream from the 

media source at a bit rate that does not exceed the maximum bit rate, which ensures 

efficient use of network resources and prevents network congestion; (4) the inclusion 

of a method for dynamically adjusting the maximum bit rate based on network 

conditions, which provides flexibility in managing network resources and can lead 

to improved quality of service; and (5) the ability to provide a smoother streaming 

experience to the user by managing the bit rate of the media stream, which can 

reduce issues such as buffering or poor video quality. 

United States Patent No. 9,231,994 

39. On January 5, 2016, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States 

Patent No. 9,231,994 (“the ’994 patent”) entitled “Streaming media” to inventors 

Martti Mela and Pekka Pessi. 

40. The ’994 patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

41. ThinkLogix owns all rights, title, and interest in the ’994 patent. 

42. ThinkLogix has not granted VTech approval, an authorization, or a 

license to the rights under the ’994 patent. 

43. The ’994 patent relates to, among other things, multimedia streaming 

based on SIP protocol. 
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44. The specification of the ’994 patent is the same as the ’835 patent 

specification and addresses and solves the problems recited above and described in 

the ’835 patent specification. 

United States Patent No. 9,906,573 

45. On February 27, 2018, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States 

Patent No. 9,906,573 (“the ’573 patent”) entitled “Streaming media” to inventors 

Martti Mela and Pekka Pessi. 

46. The ’573 patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

47. ThinkLogix owns all rights, title, and interest in the ’573 patent. 

48. ThinkLogix has not granted VTech an approval, an authorization, or a 

license to the rights under the ’573 patent. 

49. The ’573 patent relates to, among other things, multimedia streaming 

based on SIP protocol. 

50. The specification of the ’573 patent is the same as the ’835 patent 

specification and addresses and solves the problems recited above and described in 

the ’835 patent specification. 

United States Patent No. 7,184,524 

51. On February 27, 2007, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States 

Patent No. 7,184,524 (“the ’524 patent”) entitled “Rule Based Real-Time 

Communication System” to inventors Charles J. Digate, Christopher F. Herot, 

Tonytip Ketudat, and Alexis M. Kopikis. 

52. The ’524 patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

53. ThinkLogix owns all rights, title, and interest in the ’524 patent. 
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54. ThinkLogix has not granted VTech an approval, an authorization, or a 

license to the rights under the ’524 patent. 

55. The ’524 patent relates to, among other things, real-time 

communication, and, more specifically, to a rules-based real-time communication 

system that facilitates conference scheduling, information distribution and 

communication among a plurality of users. 

56. The claimed invention(s) of the ’524 patent sought to solve problems 

with, and improve upon, existing real-time communication solutions. For example, 

the ’524 patent states: 

A rules based real-time messaging system for groups of users is disclosed, in 
which an availability status may be maintained in association with each user. 
A number of client systems are communicably coupled to a real-time 
messaging server via a network. The real-time messaging server applies a set 
of rules to the availability status of users, as well as other attributes associated 
with users, in order to facilitate effective real-time message passing between 
users. As described herein, the availability status of a user reflects what is 
generally referred to as the online presence of that user.  
 
The real-time messaging server includes a number of rules and a rules engine 
for controlling delivery of messages to users, and for controlling how user 
availability is communicated among users. Rules stored in the rules database, 
or the rules engine itself, include various types of rules, including “when and 
"if-then type rules. Based on the rules stored on the real-time messaging server, 
the rules engine determines the state of relevant conditions, such as the 
availability status of specific users, and responds to the occurrence of relevant 
real-time events, such as a user logging-on or logging-off, in order to control 
the delivery of various messages and/or performance of resulting actions.  
 
The disclosed system facilitates real-time group interaction by monitoring 
events and testing for conditions, and taking appropriate actions. Through the 
rules and rules engine in the real-time messaging server, the disclosed system 
enables users to control their availability to other users, and how they are 
accessed for real-time activities Such as online meetings or teleconferences. As 
a result, the disclosed real-time messaging system is particularly Suited for 
setting up real-time activities among key individuals. The disclosed system 
advantageously employs online presence indicators to conveniently convene a 
conference immediately when possible, to convene a conference as soon as 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 15 of 130



 16 

possible if it is not feasible to convene the conference immediately, and/or to 
schedule a conference at a predetermined time in the future, as well as assuring 
the participation of needed contributors in a conference or other real-time 
activity. Moreover, while the disclosed system is described herein with 
reference to various embodiments and examples of operation in which 
convening a meeting is used as an example of a real-time activity or action, the 
real-time activities or actions provided by or in connection with the disclosed 
system are not limited to meetings between users, and may additionally or 
alternatively include chat sessions, shared whiteboards, remote presentations, 
audio conferences, video conferences, and/or any combination of these or 
other forms of communication between users.  
 
Other features, aspects and advantages of the presently disclosed system and 
method will be apparent from the detailed description of the invention that 
follows. 

 
See e.g., ’524 Specification col. 2, l. 33 – col. 3, ll. 1- 18. 
 

57. The inventions claimed in the ’524 patent overcome the limitations of 

prior art to enhance the user experience in real-time communications, including but 

not limited to: (1) the ability to have a real-time messaging system designed to 

facilitate real-time convening of conferences and business communication; (2) the 

availability status of a user reflecting what is generally referred to as the online 

presence of a user; (3) facilitating real-time group interaction by monitoring events, 

testing conditions and taking appropriate action; and (4) additionally or alternatively 

including chat session, shared whiteboards, remote presentations, audio conferences, 

video conferences, and/or any combination of these forms of communication 

between users.  

United States Patent No. 7,136,392 

58. On November 14, 2006, the USPTO duly and legally issued United 

States Patent No. 7,136,392 (“the ’392 patent”) entitled “System and Method for 
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Ordering Data Message Having Differing Levels of Priority for Transmission Over a 

Shared Communication Channel” to inventor Maarten Menzo Wentink. 

59. On September 9, 2015, the Patent Trial and Appeal Board at the USPTO 

duly and legally ordered that several claims including Claim 4 of the ‘392 to be 

patentable. 

60. The ’392 patent is presumed valid under 35 U.S.C. § 282. 

61. ThinkLogix owns all rights, title, and interest in the ’392 patent. 

62. ThinkLogix has not granted VTech an approval, an authorization, or a 

license to the rights under the ’392 patent. 

63. The ’392 patent relates to, among other things, method and apparatus 

for classifying and ordering data messages prior to their transmission over a shared 

communication channel. 

64. The claimed invention(s) of the ’392 patent sought to solve problems 

with, and improve upon, media control in communication networks. For example, 

the ’392 patent states: 

A method according to an illustrative embodiment of the invention comprises 
directing, to a first output queue at a first station of a communication network, 
data message units that are to be transmitted over a communication medium 
and that have a first traffic classification. The method further comprises 
directing to a second output queue at the first station, data message units that 
are to be transmitted over the communication medium and that have a second 
traffic classification. Each queue senses the communication medium for an 
opportunity to transmit data message units according to the aforementioned 
set of rules. An attempt is made to retransmit, after a respective interval defined 
differently for each corresponding traffic classification, any message data unit 
transmitted by the first station that destructively interferes with a message data 
unit transmitted by another station over the communication medium, or with 
other causes of interference.  
 
If the first and second output queues at the first station each contain data 
message units that are scheduled to be transmitted during the same sensed 
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transmit opportunity, they could benefit from that prior knowledge and, by 
way of illustrative example, at least one message data unit from the first output 
queue can be preferentially transmitted over a message data unit from the 
second queue. For purposes of this specification, preferential treatment 
encompasses one or more measures that guarantee—for streams of higher 
priority data message units—an average transmission rate that is higher 
and/or a maximum delay before transmission that is lower than that which is 
guaranteed to streams of lower priority data message units. Such measures 
include, by way of illustrative example, deferring transmission of (i.e., 
"preempting') a lower priority message data unit from the second output queue 
to ensure that the higher priority message data unit can be transmitted during 
a specific transmit opportunity.  
 
According to the present invention, however, an effort is made to fairly allocate 
transmission opportunities among every queue having data message units of 
the same traffic classification to transmit-regardless of where each queue 
happens to be among the stations of the network. Specifically, each station is 
configured so that a queue containing higher priority data message units has 
no more impact on the scheduling order of a local queue (i.e., a queue in the 
same station) than it does on the scheduling order of any external queue (a 
queue at any other station) that contains data message units of the same, lower 
priority level. To this end, in the illustrative embodiment of the invention, at 
least one attempt is made to transmit a data message unit, from the second 
output queue, that has been pre-empted by a higher priority message data unit 
from the first output queue, as if that pre-empted message data unit had 
already been transmitted and had experienced destructive interference. As 
such, the probability that a message data unit of a given priority level will be 
transmitted during a Subsequent transmission opportunity is Substantially the 
same regardless of whether it was actually transmitted and destructively 
interfered with a message data unit from another station or it was internally 
pre-empted by a higher priority message data unit before it could be 
transmitted. 

See e.g., ’392 Specification col. 2, l. 24 – col. 3, ll. 1- 15. 
 

65. The inventions claimed in the ’392 patent overcome the limitations of 

prior art to enhance media control in communication networks, including but not 

limited to: (1) fairly allocating transmission opportunities between all queues 

containing data messages of the same priority level; (2) directing message data units 

with first traffic classification to an output queue at a first station of a 

communication network; (3) directing message data units with a second traffic 
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classification to an output queue at a first station; (4) sensing a communication 

medium for an opportunity to transmit message data units without interference 

from message data units transmitted by a second station, according to sets of rules 

that vary by traffic classification yet are common to the first station and second 

station; (5) attempting to retransmit, after a respective interval defined differently by 

a set of rules, any message data unit transmitted over the communication medium 

by a station that collides with a message data unit transmitted by another station; (6) 

attempting to initially transmit a first message data unit from the second output 

queue of the first station, in accordance with the set of rules corresponding to a 

traffic classification thereof, as if an unsuccessful attempt to transmit the first 

message data unit had already been made during a previous transmission 

opportunity; and (7) attempting to transmit the first message data unit after an 

interval specified by the set of rules corresponding to the traffic classification of the 

second queue. 

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF 

Count I – Infringement of United States Patent No. 6,920,373 

66. ThinkLogix repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully 

set forth here, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs above.   

67. On information and belief, VTech is in violation 35 U.S. C. § 271(a) with 

respect to one or more claims of the ’373 patent.  

68. On information and belief, VTech (or those acting on its behalf) has 

made, used, offered to sell, sold, and/or imported one or more components of the 
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VTech Products and Services that infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least claim 1 of the ’373 patent.  

69. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises a closed-loop control system, (e.g., a baby monitor) 

that remotely controls a device (e.g., a baby camera unit) over the Internet. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-

full-hd-1080p. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/store/pd/4710/RM7766-2HD-2-Camera-

1080p-Smart-WiFi-Remote-Access-360-Degree-Pan-Tilt-Video-Baby-Monitor-with-7-

High-Definition-720p-Display-Night-Light. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/store/pd/4710/RM7766-2HD-2-Camera-

1080p-Smart-WiFi-Remote-Access-360-Degree-Pan-Tilt-Video-Baby-Monitor-with-7-

High-Definition-720p-Display-Night-Light. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-

full-hd-1080p. 
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See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 22 of 130



 23 

See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

 

See e.g., https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.cams.VTech.mvb.pro. 

 

See e.g., https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.cams.VTech.mvb.pro. 

70. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises a device (e.g., a baby monitoring unit) that is 
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connected to said Internet and that generates super-media feedback signals (e.g., 

video/audio signals, images, and temperature alerts). 

 

See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-

full-hd-1080p. 

 

See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

71. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises a computer (e.g., a parent unit, or a smartphone 

installed with ‘MyVTech Baby Pro’ app) connected to said Internet and a controller 

that provides super-media feedback, wherein said computer generates and transmits 

command signals (e.g., alert commands) using said controller to said device and 

outputs said super-media feedback signals (e.g., video/audio signals, images, and 

temperature alerts) to said controller. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-

full-hd-1080p.  

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-

full-hd-1080p. 
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See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

 

See e.g., https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.cams.VTech.mvb.pro. 
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See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

72. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises wherein said closed-loop control system is event-

based (e.g., each alert/recording is triggered by motion detection) to ensure stability 

and synchronization of said closed-loop system.  
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See e.g., https://www.VTechphones.com/products/baby-monitors/wifi-monitor-

full-hd-1080p.  

 

See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 31 of 130



 32 

 

See e.g., https://cdn-web.vtp-media.com/products/RM/RM7766/RM7766-

XHD_QSG_V4_20221228.pdf. 

73. ThinkLogix has been damaged by and has suffered irreparable harm as 

a result of Vtech’s infringement. 

Count II – Infringement of United States Patent No. 8,599,835 

74. ThinkLogix repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully 

set forth here, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs above.  

75. On information and belief, VTech is in violation 35 U.S. C. § 271(a) with 

respect to one or more claims of the ’835 patent. 
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76. On information and belief, VTech (or those acting on its behalf) has 

made, used, offered to sell, sold, and/or imported one or more components of the 

VTech Products and Services that infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least claim 1 of the ’835 patent. 

77. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

comprising the step of receiving a first SIP message (e.g., a SIP INVITE), from a client 

(e.g., a user initiating or attending the SIP-based call via VTech’s ‘2-Line Color SIP 

Cordless Accessory Handset, or VTech Snom’s Desk Telephone D717, or similar 

VTech’s desk phones), requesting media (e.g., requesting for a live SIP-based audio 

call). 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTech.com. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/1e3c57af-0e3e-46f0-a488-

d857429943ad/snomamericas_product_catalog_en.pdf 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/1e3c57af-0e3e-46f0-a488-

d857429943ad/snomamericas_product_catalog_en.pdf. 

 

See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/en/pd/ip-phones/desk-phones/d7xx-

series-next-gen/d717. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

78. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

comprising the step of sending, using a processor, a notify SIP message (e.g., 200 OK) 

to the client, wherein the notify SIP message comprises a contact header, and 

wherein the contact header comprises a parameter (e.g., Session ID) that indicates the 

requested media is to be streamed to the client. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 

 

See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

79. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

comprising the step of streaming the requested media to the client based in part on 

the parameter. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

80. On information and belief, VTech is in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) 

and has been, at least since its October 2023 knowledge of the ’835 patent, indirectly 

infringing and continues to indirectly infringe at least claim 1 of the ’835 patent by 

knowingly and specifically intending to induce infringement by others (including, 

without limitation, VTech’s customers) and possessing specific intent to encourage 

infringement by VTech’s users of VTech’s ‘2-Line Color SIP Cordless Accessory 

Handset, or VTech Snom’s Desk Telephone D717, or similar VTech’s desk phones. 

The components of the VTech System, are specifically configured to function in 

accordance with the ’835 patent claims and are material parts of the invention.  

81. ThinkLogix has been damaged by and has suffered irreparable harm as 

a result of Vtech’s infringement. 

Count III – Infringement of United States Patent No. 9,231,994 

82. ThinkLogix repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully 

set forth here, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs above.  

83. On information and belief, VTech is in violation 35 U.S. C. § 271(a) with 

respect to one or more claims of the ’994 patent. 

84. On information and belief, VTech (or those acting on its behalf) has 

made, used, offered to sell, sold, and/or imported one or more components of the 

VTech Products and Services that infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least claim 19 of the ’994 patent. 
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85. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises one or more processors configured to send a first 

session invitation protocol (SIP) message (e.g., SIP INVITE) from a first device (e.g., 

2-Line Color SIP Cordless Accessory Handset and VTech Snom’s Desk Telephone 

D717 and other VTech devices) to a second device (e.g., VTech’s handset or another 

VTech’s device receiving the call), wherein a first header field of the first SIP 

message includes a first indicator indicating a request for a media stream (e.g., 

initiating, or attending a SIP-based audio call) and a source (e.g., Request-URI) of the 

requested media stream, wherein the first SIP message comprises a contact header 

and wherein the contact header comprises a parameter (e.g., Content identifier, or 

PSI) that indicates the requested media is to be streamed to the first device. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

86. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises one or more processors configured to receive a 

second SIP message (e.g., 200 OK) from the second device at the first device, wherein 

a second header field of the second SIP message includes a second indicator 

indicating acceptance of the request for the media stream. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads.
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

87. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises one or more processors configured to send a third 

SIP (e.g., ACK message) message from the first device to the second device, wherein 

a third header field of the third SIP message includes a third indicator indicating that 

the second device initiate streaming of the requested media stream. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

88. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprise one or more processors configured to receive the 

requested media stream (e.g., audio etc.) from the second device at the first device. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

89. ThinkLogix has been damaged by and has suffered irreparable harm as 

a result of Vtech’s infringement. 

Count IV – Infringement of United States Patent No. 9,906,573 

90. ThinkLogix repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully 

set forth here, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs above.  

91. On information and belief, VTech is in violation 35 U.S. C. § 271(a) with 

respect to one or more claims of the ’573 patent. 

92. On information and belief, VTech (or those acting on its behalf) has 

made, used, offered to sell, sold, and/or imported one or more components of the 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 65 of 130



 66 

VTech Products and Services that infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least claim 18 of the ’573 patent. 

93. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises one or more processors configured to send a first 

session invitation protocol (SIP) message (e.g., SIP INVITE) to a media source device 

(e.g., VTech’s  2-Line Color SIP Cordless Accessory Handset and VTech Snom’s Desk 

Telephone D717 receiving SIP-based audio call), wherein a first header field of the 

first SIP message includes a first indicator indicating a request for a media stream 

(e.g., initiating, or attending SIP-based audio call), wherein the first indicator 

includes a uniform resource identifier (URI) identifying (e.g., Request-URI) a source 

of the requested media stream and wherein a parameter (e.g., Content identifier, or 

PSI) of the URI indicates that streaming is to be used. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 67 of 130



 68 

 

See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 69 of 130



 70 

 

See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

94. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services comprises one or more processors configured to send a 

second SIP message (e.g., ACK message) to the media source device, wherein a 

header field of the second SIP message includes a second indicator indicating that 

the media source device initiate streaming of the requested media stream. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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See e.g., https://www.onsip.com/voip-resources/voip-solutions/sip-call-flow-

explained. 

95. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

System comprises one or more processors configured to receive the requested media 

stream from the media source device. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 
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96. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

System comprises one or more processors configured to control playback of the 

requested media stream without effecting receipt of the requested media stream. 

 

See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.snomamericas.com/assets/a18da812-db74-426e-ba99-

8ebe8ee23621/snom_D717_datasheet_en_20210210.pdf. 
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See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

 

See e.g., https://www.VTechhotelphones.com/pd/4206/LS-S342HS-2-Line-Color-

SIP-Cordless-Accessory-Handset#downloads. 

97. ThinkLogix has been damaged by and has suffered irreparable harm as 

a result of Vtech’s infringement. 
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Count V – Infringement of United States Patent No. 7,184,524 

98. ThinkLogix repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully 

set forth here, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs above. 

99. On information and belief, VTech is in violation 35 U.S. C. § 271(a) with 

respect to one or more claims of the ’524 patent. 

100. On information and belief, VTech (or those acting on its behalf) has 

made, used, offered to sell, sold, and/or imported one or more components of the 

VTech Products and Services that infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least claim 1 of the ’524 patent. 

101. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for supporting real-time communication (e.g., voice call) between at least two users 

(e.g., caller and a contact to which the call is requested to be transferred) comprising 

the step of receiving at least one request (e.g., request to transfer a call) for at least 

one real-time action (e.g., establishing a voice call), wherein said request (e.g., request 

to transfer a call) includes a list of participant users (e.g., caller, and a contact, 

configured with a presence key) to participate in said real-time action (e.g., 

establishing a voice call). 
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See e.g.¸ https://www.snomamericas.com/en/pd/d725. 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 82 of 130



 83 

 

See e.g.¸ https://www.snomamericas.com/en/pd/d725. 

 

See e.g.¸ https://www.snomamericas.com/eco-system/pbx-interoperability-

partner/microsoft. 
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See e.g., from Datasheet of accused product. 

102. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for supporting real-time communication (e.g., voice call) between at least two users 

(e.g., caller and a contact to which the call is requested to be transferred) comprising 

in a first determining step, determining, responsive to said at least one request (e.g., 

request to transfer a call), a status (e.g., available, busy, away etc.) of at least one 

condition (e.g., presence of a contact, configured with a presence key), wherein said 

status (e.g., available, busy, away etc.) of said at least one condition  (e.g., presence of 

a contact, configured with a presence key) indicates whether at least one of said 

participant users (e.g., caller and a contact configured with a presence key) is 

available to participate in said real-time action (e.g., establishing a voice call), and 

wherein said status (e.g., available, busy, away etc.) of said at least one condition 
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(e.g., presence of a contact configured with a presence key) is responsive to an online 

presence (e.g., led indicating status of the contact configured with a presence key) of 

said at least one of said participant users (e.g., caller and a contact configured with a 

presence key). 

 

 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 86 of 130



 87 

 

 

Case 6:24-cv-00206   Document 1   Filed 04/22/24   Page 87 of 130



 88 

 

 

See e.g., from Datasheet of accused product. 

103. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for supporting real-time communication (e.g., voice call) between at least two users 

(e.g., caller and a contact to which the call is requested to be transferred) comprising 

of a second determining step, determining whether said at least one real-time action 

(e.g., establishing a voice call) can be performed responsive to said status (e.g., 

available, busy, away etc.) of said at least one condition (e.g., presence of contact 

associated with an extension number to which the call is requested to be 

transferred). 
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See e.g., from Datasheet of accused product. 

104. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for supporting real-time communication (e.g., voice call) between at least two users 

(e.g., caller and a contact to which the call is requested to be transferred) comprising 

the step of performing said real-time action (e.g., establishing a voice call) in the 

event that a determination is made that said real-time action (e.g., establishing a 

voice call) can be performed. 
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See e.g., from Datasheet of accused product. 

105. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for supporting real-time communication (e.g., voice call) between at least two users 

(e.g., caller and a contact to which the call is requested to be transferred) comprising 

the step of wherein said second determining step and said performing step are 

responsive to a processing of at least one rule (e.g., mandating presence of contact 

indicated by green led and the contact picking up a call), said at least one rule (e.g., 

mandating presence of contact indicated by green led and the contact picking up a 

call), having a logical structure defined by at least one of at least one condition (e.g., 

presence of a contact configured with a presence key) and at least one event 
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notification (e.g., if the contact, configured with a presence key, do not pick up a call 

after a time), said at least one rule (e.g., mandating presence of contact indicated by 

green led and the contact picking up a call), defining a specified relationship 

between said at least one condition (e.g., presence of a contact configured with a 

presence key), said at least one event notification (e.g., if the contact, configured with 

a presence key, do not pick up a call after a time), and said real-time action (e.g., 

establishing a voice call). 
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See e.g., from Datasheet of accused product 

106. ThinkLogix has been damaged by and has suffered irreparable harm as 

a result of Vtech’s infringement. 

Count VI – Infringement of United States Patent No. 7,136,392 

107. ThinkLogix repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully 

set forth here, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs above. 

108. On information and belief, VTech is in violation 35 U.S. C. § 271(a) with 

respect to one or more claims of the ’392 patent. 

109. On information and belief, VTech (or those acting on its behalf) has 

made, used, offered to sell, sold, and/or imported one or more components of the 

VTech Products and Services that infringes (literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents) at least claim 4 of the ’392 patent. 

110. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of  a method 

for comprising the step of directing to a first output queue (e.g., an output queue of 

an access category, i.e., background category queue, of an WMM STA or AP such as 

the accused product) at a first station (e.g., transmitting STA or AP such as the 

accused product) of a communication network (e.g., WLAN network), message data 
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units (e.g., MPDU, MSDU, MMPDU, etc.) to be transmitted over a communication 

medium (e.g., wireless medium) and having a first traffic classification (e.g., access 

categories such as background traffic, etc.). 

 

See e.g., https://www.vtechkids.com/kidibuzzsafety. 

 

See e.g., https://www.walmart.com/ip/VTech-KidiBuzz-G2-Kid-Electronic-Smart-Device-with-

KidiConnect-Black/953948994. 
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See e.g., https://www.wi-fi.org/product-finder-results?keywords=WFA83894. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen captures from the IEEE 802-11e Standard. 

 

 

See e.g., screen captures from the IEEE 802-11 Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the IEEE 802-11e Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen captures from the WiFi Certified for WMM – Support for Multimedia Applications 

with Quality of Service in Wi-Fi Networks. 

111. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for comprising the step of directing to a second output queue (e.g., an output queue 

of an access category, i.e., voice category queue, of an WMM STA or AP such as the 
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accused product) at the first station (e.g., transmitting STA or AP such as the accused 

product), message data units (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU or MSDU, etc.) to be 

transmitted over the communication medium (e.g., wireless medium) and having a 

second traffic classification (e.g., voice traffic, etc.). 

 

See e.g., https://www.wi-fi.org/product-finder-results?keywords=WFA83894. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen captures from the IEEE 802-11e Standard. 

 

 

See e.g., screen captures from the IEEE 802-11 Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the IEEE 802-11e Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen capture from the WiFi Certified for WMM – Support for Multimedia Applications with 

Quality of Service in Wi-Fi Networks. 

112.  On information and belief, one or more components of the Vtech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for comprising the step of sensing the communication medium (e.g., wireless 

medium) for an opportunity (e.g., transmission opportunity i.e., TXOP) to transmit 

message data units (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU, MSDU, etc.) without interference (e.g., 

collision avoidance method such as EDCA, etc.) from message data units (e.g., 

MPDU, MMPDU, MSDU, etc.) transmitted by a second station (e.g., another STA or 

AP in the WLAN network), according to sets of rules (e.g., transmission initiation 

rules) that vary by traffic classification (e.g., access category indicating different 

traffic types) yet are common to the first station (e.g., a transmitting STA or AP such 

as the accused product) and the second station (e.g., any other STA or AP in the 

network. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the Wi-Fi Certified for WMM – Support for Multimedia Applications 

with Quality of Service in Wi-Fi Networks. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

113. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for comprising the step of further including attempting to retransmit (e.g., 

retransmitting after failed transmission), after a respective interval (e.g., backoff 

timer) defined differently by each said set of rules (e.g., rules defined by channel 

access mechanism), any message data unit (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU, MSDU, etc.) 

transmitted over the communication medium (e.g., wireless medium) by a station 

(e.g., a WMM STA or AP such as the accused product) that collides with a message 

data unit (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU, MSDU, etc.) transmitted by another station (e.g., 

other STA with the WLAN network). 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen captures from IEEE 802-11e Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the Wi-Fi Certified for WMM – Support for Multimedia Applications 

with Quality of Service in Wi-Fi Networks. 

 

See e.g., screen capture from the IEEE 802-11 Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

114. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs, provides, and dictates the performance of a method 

for comprising the step of further including attempting to initially transmit a first 

message data unit (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU, MSDU, etc.) from the second output 

queue (e.g., an output queue of an access category, i.e., voice category queue, of an 

WMM STA or AP such as the accused product) of the first station (e.g., an WMM 

STA or AP such as the accused product), in accordance with the set of rules (e.g., 

transmission initiation rules) corresponding to the traffic classification (e.g., access 

category indicating different traffic types) thereof, as if an unsuccessful attempt to 

transmit (e.g., failed transmission) the first message data unit (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU, 

MSDU, etc.) had already been made during a previous transmission opportunity 

(e.g., transmission opportunity i.e., TXOP). 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen captures from IEEE 802-11e Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the Wi-Fi Certified for WMM – Support for Multimedia Applications 

with Quality of Service in Wi-Fi Networks. 

 

See e.g., screen capture from the IEEE 802-11 Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

115. On information and belief, one or more components of the VTech 

Products and Services employs and provides a method where an attempt is made to 

transmit the first message data unit (e.g., MPDU, MMPDU, MSDU, etc.) after an 

interval (e.g., backoff timer) specified by the set of rules (e.g., transmission initiation 

rules, etc.) corresponding to the traffic classification (e.g., access category indicating 

different traffic types) of the second queue (e.g., an output queue of an access 

category, i.e., voice category queue, of an WMM STA or AP such as the accused 

product).  
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

 

See e.g., screen captures from IEEE 802-11e Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 
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See e.g., screen captures from the Wi-Fi Certified for WMM – Support for Multimedia Applications 

with Quality of Service in Wi-Fi Networks. 

 

See e.g., screen capture from the IEEE 802-11 Standard. 
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See e.g., screen captures from WMM Specification Version 1.1. 

116. ThinkLogix has been damaged by and has suffered irreparable harm as 

a result of Vtech’s infringement. 

JURY DEMANDED 

117. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38(b), ThinkLogix hereby 

requests a trial by jury on all issues so triable.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

118. ThinkLogix respectfully requests this Court to enter judgment in 

ThinkLogix’s favor and against VTech as follows:  

a. finding that VTech has infringed one or more claims of the ’373 patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a);  

b. finding that VTech has infringed one or more claims of the ’835 patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) and (b);  
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c. finding that VTech has infringed one or more claims of the ’994 patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a);  

d. finding that VTech has infringed one or more claims of the ’573 patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a);  

e. finding that VTech has infringed one or more claims of the ’524 patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a);  

f. finding that VTech has infringed one or more claims of the ’392 patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a);  

g. awarding ThinkLogix damages under 35 U.S.C. § 284, or otherwise 

permitted by law;  

h. awarding ThinkLogix pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on the 

damages award and costs; 

i. declaring that VTech has willfully infringed one or more claims of the 

Patents-in-Suit; 

j. awarding treble damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284 as a result of 

VTech’s willful conduct in relation to one or more claims of the 

Patents-in-Suit;   

k. awarding cost of this action (including all disbursements) and attorney 

fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285, or as otherwise permitted by the law; 

and   

l. awarding such other costs and further relief that the Court determines 

to be just and equitable.  
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Dated: April 22, 2024 Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ Zachary H. Ellis  
Zachary H. Ellis* 
Texas State Bar No. 24122606 
zellis@daignaultiyer.com 
Tel. 512-829-7992 

Of Counsel:  
Ronald M. Daignault (pro hac vice to be filed)* 
Chandran B. Iyer (pro hac vice to be filed) 
Oded Burger (admitted to practice)* 
rdaignault@daignaultiyer.com 
cbiyer@daignualtiyer.com 
oburger@daignaultiyer.com 
DAIGNAULT IYER LLP 
8618 Westwood Center Drive - Suite 150 
Vienna, VA 22182  
*Not admitted to practice in Virginia 

Attorneys for Plaintiff ThinkLogix LLC. 
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